
APPLICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
DLM Conference, 3'd Floor ITC Bldg., Tamuning, Guam 96913

Thursday, October 17,2024.9:36 a.m. to 10:19 a.m.

l. Attendance/RollCall

Chairperson Cruz called to order the regular meeting of the Application Review Committee for
Thursday, October 17,2024 at 9:36 a.m.

Present were: Chairperson Celine Cruz (DLM), Nonie Amar (GEPA), Brian Hess (GWA), Jeffrey
Quitugua (DoAG), Russell Kanai (DPR), and Mary Rose Wilson (DPW.

Noting a quorum, Chairperson Cruz moved on to the next item on the agenda.

Chairperson Cruz before the committee is the approval of the Minutes from the last ARC meeting
on August 1,2024. Members were provided an electronic copy of the Minutes, and Madam Chair
asked for a motion for action.

Russell nai. DPR made a motion to approve the Minutes

Nonie Amar, GEPA seconded the motion

Chairperson Cruz confirmed and accepted the motion made by DPR and seconded by GEPA
Noting no discussion, errors, or omissions, Chairperson Cruz puts the motion to a vote with all
members in favor of approval. [Motion carried with a vote of 6 ayes, 0 nays]

lll. New Business

Zone Variance

Chairpe on Cruz turned the floor over to the applicant's representative for a brief presentation

for the committee

Marvin Aouilar (with TG Enoineers. PC) explained that the project is located on Lot 5372-2-Rl in

the municipality of Mangilao, more specifically off Techaira Road; and, the purpose of the

application is to repurpose an existing warehouse-like structure for the storage of recycled white

goods and materials. The owner is looking at the storage of white goods such as refrigerators,

washing machines, and dryers.

Mr. Aquilar provided the following PowerPoint presentation

ll. Aporoval of Minutes

A. Aoolication No. 2024-53, the Applicant, ERC Trading lncorporated represented by TG
Engineers, PC; requests a Zone Vanance for Use, to allow for the use of an existing
building for indoor storage of hardware goods and materials, on Lot 5372-2-Rl, in the
Municipality of Mangilao, in an "R-2" (Multi-Family Dwelling) zone.
Case Planner: Theresa Guevara

ARC Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, October 17, 2024

Page 1 of 7



> The company is known as ERC and has two shops one in Dededo and the other in

Barrigada. The property is currently zoned "R-2.

) Project image of the property location.
> To the left of the property was a former business that could have been a repair shop or

parking of heavy equipment, and across the street, there is an existing vacant lot where
they were possibly parking cranes and other heavy equipment.

) The new owner purchased the property in 2022 and has since kept the property free of
vegetation.

> The next image was the External Site Plan showing an egress/ingress; parking located to

the side of the lot; and, an existing '18-foot wide roll-up door (to the south) which will be

used for loading and off-loading of goods.

i There is a sewer septic tank located to the north of the property but due to the heavy

vegetation, a photo could not be provided.

Mr. Aguilar explained that the first property ownet before subdividing the property, went into an

agreement with the University of Guam to provrde an auxiliary gym and sports facility which did

not work out.

> The next lmage displayed was an as-built of the building. Mr. Aguilar explained that the

area displayed in pink is the open area, the lime green area is a utility room, the blue is

a restroom/shower, and an office in the back.

> The next lmage displayed is a two-story office with a staircase inside the warehouse.

Brian Hess, GWA inquired if there were wastewater utilities in the two-story structure to which Mr

Augilar responded that there were none. Mr. Aguilar added that the area was earmarked to be

designed as a gym-

), There is water, power, and sewer available. The public sewer is less than 100 feet from

the perimeter gate to the entrance. The applicant has been informed and understands

that he can use a septic tanuleaching field system or mandatory hook-up to the public

sewer.
> The applicant is requesting the Use Variance for five years. His intent after five years is

to use the property for what it is zoned for which would be multi-family dwelling units.

) The current use will be strictly for storage and delivery and no other type of business

activity. Flatbeds will be used and there will be no containers.
> The upgrade to the building at this time is limited to post-typhoon Mawar repairs.
> The facility will not be manned by personnel.

z There will be no storage of equipment or materials outside of the structure.

) ln the application, there is a strict operational plan and the objective of this plan is to
minimize the impact lo the surrounding neighborhood. lmpacts for example would be

minimizing noise pollution, bright lights except security lights in the evening, and possibly

a security guard.

ARC Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, Octobet 17, 2024

Page 2 ol7



Chairoerson Cruz the images that indicate Office 1 and Office 2, Chairperson Cruz asked if this
part of the building will run the entire length of the building.

Marvin Aouilar replied "No" and explained that the office is the smallest unit, and in the light blue

are the showers and toilet stalls

Chairperson Cruz it would be the areas shaded yellow, blue, and purple

Marvin Aouilar responded that it was outside. Mr. Aguilar added the warehouse is a butler/tin

building and the rest is concrete (in yellow, blue, and purple)

Chairpe on Cruz asked Mr. Aguilar to return to the front-facing image of the warehouse

Chairperson Cruz commented that it does not appear that it runs the full length of the building

based on the image displayed. The site plan shows that it runs the whole length, so the as-built
provided does not show it exactly as as-built. Chairperson Cruz added that she questioned the

orientation of that particular area.

IDiscussion ensues]

Marvin Aquilar replied that there is water connection but no sewer connection. Mr. Aguilar noted

that the application states that they will defer to GEPA on this matter, the owner may or may not

improve the wastewater system, or will use a septic tanUleaching field system because the facility

will not be manned, and this would all be addressed during the permitting process.

Marvin Aqurlar replied that it was a trash receptacle. Mr. Aguilar added that the perimeter fence
will also be repaired since was damaged by the typhoon

Jeffrev Qu commented that he was concerned with the disruption of existing traffic

ARC Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, Octobe||7, 2024

Page 3 of 7

in the area
oua. DoAG

Nonie Amar, GEPA commented that it appears that it is outside of the building.

Brian Hess, GWA asked if there was water and public sewer connection to the property.

Brian Hess, GWA stated that he would leave the decision up to Guam EPA.

Russell Kanai. DPR asked what was the structure located on the south side of the property.

Jeffrev Quituoua. DoAG it was mentioned in the presentation that flatbeds would be used and

assumed that it would be the long-type trucks, and asked what type of trucks would be used to

bring in/out the goods.

Marvin Aquilar the trucks will not be flatbeds, but smaller delivery-type trucks.



Marvin Aouilar replied that the traffic flow is dictated by the activities that are happening at the
University and GW High School, any other additional commercial-type activities that will contribute

to the traffic congestion is minimal compared to what happens in this area daily and during the

school season.

Jeffrev Quituqua, DoAG commented that he is concerned with the traffic in the area, and even

with the new McDonald's being developed at this time, it has been a nightmare. Mr. Quitugua

cannot understand why there has been no enforcement on how trafiic is being dealt with in the
area, and because of the road closure, it just obstructs the traffic more.

Jeffrev Quituoua. DoAG replied that even if it is temporary it needs to be addressed, and wants

to ensure that the applicant is aware of the traffic issue

[Discussion ensues]

Brian Hess. GWA commented that five years from now, the applicant has plans to build apartment

units (Mr. Aguilar replied that the owner is considering it). Mr. Hess stated that the construction

of an apartment structure will impact the sewer line design for public connection, and it would be

good to know what the owner's intentions are. lt is important for GEPAto know what lhe owner's

intentions are for future connection to public sewer.

Marvin Aquilar explained that from Techaira on back, into the new subdivision behind Payless,

there is sewer. Mr Aguilar added that the entire area is R-2 zoned, and the sewer capacity was

upgraded to accommodate the R-2 zoned throughout, all the way down from the University of

Guam to the Japan School. He added that there was a brief discussion with the applicant on what

can be built on the property, but nothing has been set in stone.

Marvin Aquilar responded possibly liability insurance; however, he cannot answer the question at

this time. (Mr. Aguilar also passed out to the members a revised EPA impact statement with a new

CD of the revised application.)

Chairperson Cruz thanked Mr. Aguilar for the presentation and turned the floor over to the

members for questions.

Nonie Amar, GEPA commented that the area is zoned R-2 but the application indicates

commercial/industrial; and per EPA regulations the applicant will have to connect to public sewer
for commercial use activities. lt was mentioned that the property is less than 100 feet from the

main public sewer.

ARC Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, Octobet 17, 2024

Page 4 of 7

Marvin Aouilar the traffic congestion at this time is temporary.

Marv Rose \Mlson. DPW commented this is a butler{ype building and asked how the structure

will be secured during natural disasters.



Marvin Aouilar replied that the width of the apartment structure is about 1 00 feet and the sewer is

there.

Russell Kanai DPR commented that their Department has no objection to the applicant's request,

and their position statement will be prepared and submitted

Jeffrev Qu oua. DoAG commented that on the application packet, Appendix D (Operational

Plan). One of the things that DoAG would like the applicant to incorporate is a bio-security plan

for the facility to address the possibility of invasive species being spread. Through the years they

have seen unwanted pests making their way into Guam, and they want to ensure that there is no

contribution to this issue. Mr. Quitugua suggested that the applicant speak with Mr. Chris Rosario

at Bio Security about what can be done to accomplish this. There have been times that the

importation of goods has been overlooked and not being searched properly.

Mr. Quitugua wanted a better understanding of who prepares or responds to the questions noted

on the EPA Short-form whether it was the applicant or the representative. (Mr. Aguilar responded

that it was TG Engineers who prepared the form). He further comments that it is contradicting

because, on one part of the response, it indicates the groundwater recharge area, and identifies

the Guam northern aquifer recharge area; and in the second question which asks about

the watershed, the response is none. He suggested that they perhaps re-evaluate the answers

provided and seek an opinion from WERI on whetherthe area is a watershed or not. Mr. Quitugua

stated that it is his understanding that it is a watershed area. lt should be defined to correctly

answer the question.

Brian Hess GWA asked that the applicant be reminded to coordinate with GWA's Engineering

Office six months before the submission of the building permit application to discuss the water

demand and sewer production calculation for this project. ln addition, Mr. Hess asked for the

GWA water account number for the property.

Mary Rose Wilson, DPW commenled that no insurance com pany will cover butler-type buildings

except for the contents of the building

Chairpe rson Cruz expressed that she wants the applicant to ensure what actually reflects on the

property is shown, and recommended updating the warehouse as-built floor plans so that it truly

shows what is out there. Madam Chair inquired about what type of permit the applicant would be

seeking and did not think a business license would be required to use this as a storage facility

unless business is being conducted at the location.

ARC Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, Octobet 17, 2024

Page 5 of 7

Nonie Amar. GEPA commented he measured it on the GIS map and it is about 83 feet which is
within EPAS regulations which means they would have to connect to the sewer

Marv Rose Wlson. DPW recommended lhat the applicant implement preventive maintenance

and safety regulations such as fire codes. Ms. Wilson commented that all comments will be noted

in the position statement.



Marvin Aquilar responded that it was a broad-stroke point, but perhaps an occupancy permit

would be required

Chairperson Cruz replied possibly an occupancy permit, if the occupancy permit comes in and

looks like what is cunently being presented which is not exactly what is out there, and this reason

for the request for an updated as-built.

Chairperson Cruz noted for the record that there are no agenda items for the next meeting on

Thursday, November 7, 2024; therefore, there will be no meeting. Madam Chair informed the

members that the next GLUC meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 24,2024. The next

meeting for Thursday, November 14, 2024, and there is no agenda prepared for this meeting.

Brian Hess. GWA announced that he will be retiring from GWA, and will be transitioning a new

Planner to replace him for the ARC meetings.

Chairpe on Cruz responded that she does not believe so since members have been submitting

position statements and appreciated the timely submission. She added this was not the reason

for the delay in the process of getting to the GLUC; it was more of the MPC meetings and

Resolutions.

Chairperson Cruz remarked that this is the first meeting of the fiscal year and wanted to provide

a report to the members of how many meetings ARC conducted last fiscal year, etc. but was not

able to complete the report in time for the meeting, and will provide one at the next meeting.

Noting no further business for today, Chairperson Cruz moved on to the next item on the agenda

and asked for a motion for adjournment.

Nonie Amar (GEPA) made a motion to adjourn today's meeting, the motion was seconded by

Mary Rose Wilson (DPW).

Chairperson Cruz accepted the motion made by GEPA and seconded by DPW Madam Chair

puts the motion to a vote, with all in favor of approval lMotion carried; 6 ayes, 0 nays].

ARC Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, Oclobet 17, 2024

Page 6 of 7

lV. Aoproval ofARC Aoenda

V. Administrative and Miscellaneous Matters

Chairoerson Cruz opened the floor to the members for administrative or miscellaneous matters.

Nonie Amar, GEPA inquired if any outstanding position statements have not been submitted by

EPA,

Vl. Adiournment



The regular meeting of the Application Review Committee for Thursday, October 17, 2024, was
adjourned at 10.19 a.m.

Approved by: Date approved

I 7." Tt'zt-
e L. Cruz, Chai
ication Review Committee

Transcribed by:

M. Cristina Gutierrez,Glcording S(glary
Planning Division, DLM

ARC Regular Meeting Minutes
Thursday, October 17, 2024

Page 7 ol7


